
                                                                                                           

 

 

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 94501 

 

 
 

IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: 
 
 1. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director, and upon recognition by 
  the President, approach the rostrum and state your name; speakers are limited 
  to 5 minutes per item. 
 

 2. If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Board of 
  Directors of Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation, please contact Stacey 
  Wilson at (510) 747-4307 (TTY/TRS: 711) or swilson@alamedahsg.org. 
  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Alameda Affordable 
 Housing Corporation Board of Directors to make reasonable arrangements to 
 ensure accessibility. 
 

 

 

AGENDA ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE & TIME Wednesday, June 19, 2019 – 7:01 PM 
  

LOCATION Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 
 
Public Participation 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by Directors 
may speak for a maximum of five minutes per agenda item when the subject is before the 
Board.  Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director if you wish to address the 
Board of Directors. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Directors 
 
2.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 
3.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by one 
motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the Board 
of Directors or a member of the public. 

3-A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors held June 20, 2018, 

page 1 



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting  Page 2 
June 19, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

 
 
4.  AGENDA 
 

4-A.  Accept Memo Regarding the Reconciliation of AAHC Property Purchases, page 4 
 
4-B.  Accept Audited Financial Statements for the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 

Showing AAHC’s Financials as a Blended Component Unit and IRS Form 990, page 7 
 

4-C.  Revise the Regular Meeting Schedule, page 80 
 

4-D.  Approve the FY2019-2020 Budget, page 81 
 
5.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
6.  DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Directors) 
 
7.  ADJOURNMENT OF ANNUAL MEETING 

 
* * * 
Note 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Board of Directors of 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation, please contact Stacey Wilson at (510) 747-4307 
(TTY/TRS: 711) or swilson@alamedahsg.org.   Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation Board of Directors to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 
 
Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation office, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business 
hours. 
 
KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the 
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of Directors exists to 
conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before the people and 
are open for the people’s review. 
 
In order to assist the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation’s efforts to accommodate 
persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive 
to various chemical based products. Please help the Alameda Affordable Housing 
Corporation accommodate these individuals. 



                                                                                                           

 

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORTION 

701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 94501 

 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation 

June 20, 2018 

 
 
The Board of Directors Meeting was called to order at 8:23 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL -  
 
  Present: Art Kurrasch, John McCahan, Brad Weinberg, Kenji Tamaoki, Stuart 

Rickard.   
  Absent:   Fayleen Allen, Sandra Kay 

  Staff Officers Present:   Vanessa Cooper, Joyce Boyd, Lisa Caldwell 
 
2.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 

None. 
 
3.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by 
one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from 
the Board of Directors or a member of the public. 

 
3-A.  Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors held February 21, 

2018 
 

Director Kurrasch moved to approve the consent calendar items and Director Weinberg 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

 
4.  AGENDA 
 
4-A.  Adopt FYE 2019 Annual Budget, page 6 
 

Director Kurrasch moved to adopt the FYE 2019 Annual Budget and Director Weinberg 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Page 1 of 85



Meeting of the Board of Directors, June 20, 2018 Page 2 
 
 

                                                                                                           

5.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
 None. 
 
6.  DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Directors) 
 
 None. 
 
7.  ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 
  There being no further business, the President adjourned the meeting at 8:28 p.m. 
 

Page 2 of 85



Meeting of the Board of Directors, June 20, 2018 Page 3 
 
 

                                                                                                           

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
I, Vanessa Cooper, hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified Secretary of Alameda 
Affordable Housing Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of California, and the foregoing minutes are true, full 
and correct copy of the minutes of the first meeting of the Board of Directors of said 
Corporation held on this June 20, 2018. 
 
 
Dated:         
 
 
 
          
Vanessa Cooper, 
Secretary 
 

Page 3 of 85



  ITEM 4A 

                                                                                                           

 

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

 

 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
From:   Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 
 
Prepared by:  Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development 
 
Date:   June 19, 2019 
 
Re: Accept Memo Regarding the Reconciliation of AAHC Property 

Purchases 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On October 18, 2017, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City 
of Alameda (AHA) authorized the Executive Director to create a new, wholly controlled, 
nonprofit entity that will serve as owner of certain Housing Authority properties in order 
to comply with HUD’s contracting requirements.  Staff and legal counsel filed formation 
documents with the California Secretary of State for Alameda Affordable Housing 
Corporation (AAHC) on November 1, 2107. AAHC received a determination of tax 
exempt status from the Internal Revenue Services. The AHA Board of Commissioners 
are also seated as the Board of Directors of AAHC. For audit purposes, these two 
entities are designated as blended components and their financials are presented as 
combined. In February 2018, the Board passed Resolution 2018-01 authorizing the 
transfer of four properties (Anne B. Diament, China Clipper Plaza, Lincoln-Willow 
Apartments, and Stanford House) to AAHC, including soft financing for the as-is value 
of the improvements and the capitalization of replacement reserves for these properties 
in the amount of $1,000 per unit. The transfer was completed on May 1, 2018. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This memo was prepared in an effort to reconcile and memorialize all of the various 
details of this transaction as it relates to the two parties, AHA and AAHC. Additional 
transaction details are identified in the February 21, 2018 Board report and authorizing 
resolution referenced earlier. For all four of the properties mentioned above, the 
following details apply: 
 

1. AHA retains ownership of the land through a Ground Lease. 
2. AAHC owns only the building improvements, per the appraisal. AHA financed the 

acquisition of the improvements through a residual receipts seller note, the 
amounts of which are detailed in the following chart. 
 

Page 4 of 85



AAHC Board of Directors   June 19, 2019 
  Page 2 of 3 
 

                                                                                                           

 
Property Address Improvements 

Value/Seller Loan 

China Clipper Plaza 460 Buena Vista Ave $3,400,000 

Anne B Diament 920 Park St $8,130,000 

Lincoln-Willow 2101-03 Lincoln Ave and 1602 Willow St $735,000 

Stanford House 1917 Stanford St $860,000 

 
3. The improvements valuation included as-is condition, but shared assets (e.g. 

vehicles) and AHA equipment (e.g. computers) were not transferred to AAHC. 
4. AAHC has applied for a welfare tax exemption because it will be subject to 

property taxes for the possessory interest of the improvements value. 
5. Existing tenant leases were assigned to AAHC. 
6. Tenant security deposits were transferred to AAHC, per state law. 
7. AAHC has its own bank accounts for operations and reserves. 
8. $1,000 per unit in Replacement Reserves were transferred to AAHC. This totaled 

$100,000 for the four properties combined, per the chart below. 
Property Replacement Reserves 

China Clipper Plaza $26,000 

Anne B Diament $65,000 

Lincoln-Willow $5,000 

Stanford House $4,000 

TOTAL $100,000 

 
9. AHA capitalized 3 months of operating costs for AAHC to be sure that it could 

pay its bills at initial transfer while rent checks were collected by AAHC. These 
start-up funds will be paid back in full by June 30, 2019 (Anne B. Diament 
$162,469, China Clipper Plaza $79,241, Lincoln Willow $11,090, and Stanford 
House $12,857). 

10. AHA paid all costs, title and escrow fees, at the time of transfer. The costs 
associated with all four properties totaled $23,220. A delinquent tax payment 
from 1997 was paid for Lincoln Willow ($7,742) and a refund request is being 
processed with the Alameda County tax collector because it was a hold over that 
should have been paid by the seller at the time AHA acquired the property. A 
settlement statement was issued by the title company to memorialize each 
transaction. 

11. Property and General Liability Insurance is covered under the AHA’s existing 
policy, per detailed discussions with the carrier (HARRP). Directors and Officers 
coverage for AAHC is also covered under the existing AHA policy. AAHC does 
not have a separate policy. 

12. AAHC executed a Property and Asset Management Agreement with AHA to 
manage the properties.  

13. AAHC has no staff so employment benefits and liabilities remain with AHA.  
14. AAHC passes Resolution 2017-01 establishing the use of AHA’s policies and 

procedures where none exist for AAHC. 

Page 5 of 85





  ITEM 4B 

                                                                                                           

 

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

 

 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
From:   Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 
 
Prepared by:  Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development 
 
Date:   June 19, 2019 
 
Re:  Accept Audited Financial Statements for the Housing Authority of 

the City of Alameda Showing AAHC’s Financials as a Blended 
Component Unit 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC) was formed as a supporting 
corporation of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA). It is wholly controlled 
by AHA and exists as a title holding company for four properties. For audit purposes, 
these two entities are designated as blended components and their financials are 
presented as combined. AAHC does not have separate financial statements.  The 
Board of Directors of AAHC is comprised of the Board of Commissioners of AHA. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2018, were prepared in the format prescribed by the requirements 
of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 34 (GASB 34).  
 
The firm of Citrin Cooperman & Company LLP, produced the audited financial 
statements of the Housing Authority for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. This 
incorporates the audited statements for Island City Development (ICD), which is 
presented as a discrete component. AHA’s nonprofit affiliate, the Alameda Affordable 
Housing Corporation (AAHC), is a blended component with AHA and is not presented 
separately. The audit was presented in draft form by audit partner J. Michael Stephens 
for the AHA Board of Commissioners review at the March 20, 2019 regular meeting. It 
was accepted in final form by the AHA Board of Commissioners on April 17, 2019. 
 
The auditors, Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP, opined that the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Housing Authority of 
the City of Alameda as of June 30, 2018. The respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows for the year ended are in conformity with accounting principles generally 

Page 7 of 85





Page 9 of 85



Page 10 of 85



Page 11 of 85



Page 12 of 85



Page 13 of 85



Page 14 of 85



Page 15 of 85



Page 16 of 85



Page 17 of 85



Page 18 of 85



Page 19 of 85



Page 20 of 85



Page 21 of 85



Page 22 of 85



Page 23 of 85



Page 24 of 85



Page 25 of 85



Page 26 of 85



Page 27 of 85



Page 28 of 85



Page 29 of 85



Page 30 of 85



Page 31 of 85



Page 32 of 85



Page 33 of 85



Page 34 of 85



Page 35 of 85



Page 36 of 85



Page 37 of 85



Page 38 of 85



Page 39 of 85



Page 40 of 85



Page 41 of 85



Page 42 of 85



Page 43 of 85



Page 44 of 85



Page 45 of 85



Page 46 of 85



Page 47 of 85



Page 48 of 85



Page 49 of 85



Page 50 of 85



Page 51 of 85



Page 52 of 85



Page 53 of 85



Page 54 of 85



Page 55 of 85



Page 56 of 85



Page 57 of 85



Page 58 of 85



Page 59 of 85



Page 60 of 85



Page 61 of 85



Page 62 of 85



Page 63 of 85



Page 64 of 85



Page 65 of 85



Page 66 of 85



Page 67 of 85



Page 68 of 85



Page 69 of 85



Page 70 of 85



Page 71 of 85



Page 72 of 85



Page 73 of 85



Page 74 of 85



Page 75 of 85



Page 76 of 85



Page 77 of 85



Page 78 of 85



Page 79 of 85





  ITEM 4D 

                                                                                                           

 

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

 

 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
From:   Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 
 
Prepared by:  Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and Community Development 
 
Date:   June 19, 2019 
 
Re:  Approve the AAHC One-Year Operating and Capital Budget for 

Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC) adopts its annual budget in the last 
quarter of each fiscal year, along with the annual budget for the Housing Authority of the 
City of Alameda (AHA). The AAHC budget only includes the property budgets for the 
four properties owned by AAHC – Anne B. Diament, China Clipper, Stanford House, 
and Lincoln-Willow Apartments. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This year each AHA department Director has reviewed their own budgets, with the 
Executive Director and have combined historical budget data with actuals and expected 
changes in the coming fiscal year, to establish the FY 2019-2020 budget. The AHA and 
AAHC combined budget went to the AHA Board of Commissioners on June 19, 2019 for 
approval. A detailed description of the budgeting method and key highlights can be 
found in the AHA June 2019 Board packet along with the AHA budget. 
 
The attached table shows the proposed budget for the fiscal year July 1, 2019 to June 
30, 2020 for the four properties owned by AAHC – Anne B. Diament, China Clipper, 
Stanford House, and Lincoln-Willow Apartments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The operating budget for FY 2019-20 reflects an operating surplus of $504,175 to be 
paid to AHA as residual receipts payments for the acquisition loan, per property transfer 
documents. No capital expenditures are budgeted for this fiscal year. However, a 
feasibility study for the major renovation is planned for China Clipper, to be paid from 
predevelopment expenses budgeted by AHA’s Housing and Community Development 
department. 

Page 81 of 85





 Page 1 of 3

Total
6999990 INCOME
7000000 REVENUE
7020000 TENANT REVENUE
7020110 Vacancy Loss -56,615.00
7030000 Tenant Rental Revenue 475,923.00
7030100 Tenant HAP Subsidy 1,427,757.00
7050000 TOTAL TENANT REVENUE 1,847,065.00
7100000 OTHER INCOME
7110010 Investment Income - Unrestricted 13,608.00
7110011 Interest Income 27,324.00
7110020 Interest on Equip. Reserve 892.00
7110060 Interest - Replacement Reserve 19,104.00
7110075 Laundry Commission 7,428.00
7159000 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 68,356.00
8999000 TOTAL REVENUE 1,915,421.00

9000000 EXPENSES
9000900 OPERATING EXPENSES
9100000 ADMINISTRATIVE
9110010 Administrative Salaries 274,052.00
9110020 Temporary Help -  Administrative 47,573.00
9120000 Auditing Fees 5,412.00
9150010 Admin Employee Benefits -  Medical/Dental 66,310.00
9150020 Admin Employee Benefits  -  PERS/PARS 27,737.00
9150030 Admin Employee Benefits -  FICA 5,418.00
9150040 Admin Employee Benefits  -  SUI 722.00
9150060 Admin Employee Benefits - Life/LTD 1,698.00
9150090 Admin Employee Benefit  - WC 1,923.00
9160010 Office Supplies/Equipment 8,064.00
9160040 Postage 2,808.00
9160050 Telephone 6,624.00
9160060 Bank Charges and Check Supplies 5,616.00
9160100 Classified Ads and Public Notices/outreach material 1,776.00
9160110 Legal Expense 38,400.00
9160111 Payroll charge 756.00
9160120 Training/Conferences and Travel 11,748.00
9160130 Membership Dues and Fees 1,920.00
9160170 Contracts - Administrative Services/Consultant 15,204.00
9160180 Contracts - Application Service Provider - Yardi 28,260.00

Property =  affccp affabd afflwa affsta

Budget
Period = Jul 2019-Jun 2020

Book = Accrual

Page 83 of 85



 Page 2 of 3

Total

Property =  affccp affabd afflwa affsta

Budget
Period = Jul 2019-Jun 2020

Book = Accrual

9160190 Contracts - Computer/Telephone Maintenance/Email 17,496.00
9160220 Contracts - Human Resource Services 5,868.00
9160230 Contracts - Housing Inspection Services 2,436.00
9160260 Contracts - Office Machine Lease 1,740.00
9160270 Contracts - Web Hosting/Maintenance/Web Ads 2,124.00
9160290 Contracts - HR Recruitment 7,200.00
9169000 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 588,885.00
9200000 TENANT/SOCIAL SERVICES/POLICE
9210030 Police Services 22,956.00
9210100 Tenant/Social Sevices -  Salaries 31,066.00
9219000 TOTAL TENANT/SOCIAL SERVICES/POLICE 54,022.00
9230005 TENANT SERVICES EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE
9230010 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits - Medical/Dental 10,719.00
9230020 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits  -  PERS/PARS 3,154.00
9230030 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits - FICA 1,398.00
9230040 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefits - SUI 417.00
9230090 Tenant Svcs Employee Benefit - WC 5,196.00
9239000 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE 20,884.00
9240005 TENANT SERVICES
9240020 Tenant Service Activities -  Contracts and O/S Services 52,692.00
9249000 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES 52,692.00
9300000 UTILITIES
9310000 Water 31,968.00
9320000 Electricity 43,188.00
9330000 Gas 19,512.00
9380010 Sewer 54,972.00
9380020 Garbage 64,308.00
9399000 TOTAL UTILITIES 213,948.00
9399990 MAINTENANCE
9400000 MAINTENANCE SALARIES
9410010 Maintenance -  Salaries 147,216.00
9419000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE SALARIES 147,216.00
9420005 MAINTENANCE MATERIALS
9420010 Maintenance Materials 33,168.00
9420020 Vehicle - gasoline 1,464.00
9429000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE MATERIALS 34,632.00
9429005 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
9429060 Maintenance Contracts - Floor Covering 8,364.00
9429100 Maintenance Contracts - Services 22,416.00
9430010 Maintenance Contracts - Painting 12,504.00
9430020 Maintenance Contracts - Plumbing 2,064.00
9430030 Maintenance Contracts - Landscape, Pool, Pond Maintenance 19,284.00
9430040 Maintenance Contracts - HVAC Maintenance 17,172.00

Page 84 of 85



 Page 3 of 3

Total

Property =  affccp affabd afflwa affsta

Budget
Period = Jul 2019-Jun 2020

Book = Accrual

9430060 Maintenance Contracts - Elevator Maintenance 21,936.00
9430070 Maintenance Contracts - Extermination 9,480.00
9430080 Maintenance Contracts - Electrical Maintenance 360.00
9430090 Maintenance Contracts - Security and Nurse Call Systems 6,780.00
9430110 Maintenance Contracts - Gutter Cleaning Services 1,416.00
9430130 Maintenance Contracts - Other 3,228.00
9430140 Maintenance Contracts - Vehicle Maintenance 1,404.00
9430150 Maintenance Contracts - Janitorial 35,676.00
9439000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 162,084.00
9450005 MAINTENANCE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
9450010 Maint Employee Benefits  -  Medical/Dental 47,553.00
9450020 Maint Employee Benefits -  PERS/PARS 14,606.00
9450030 Maint Employee Benefits  -   FICA 2,085.00
9450040 Maint Employee Benefits  -  SUI 533.00
9450050 Maint Employee Benefits  - Life/LTD 1,251.00
9450070 Maint Employee Benefits  - Uniforms/Shoes 5,000.00
9450091 Maint Employee Benefit - WC 6,635.00
9459000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 77,663.00
9499000 TOTAL MAINTENANCE 421,595.00
9500000 GENERAL EXPENSES
9500100 Interest Expense 29,004.00
9610020 Insurance - Liability 7,008.00
9610030 Insurance - Property 21,180.00
9610040 Insurance - Vehicle 2,028.00
9698000 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 59,220.00
9699000 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,411,246.00

NET CASH FLOW 504,175.00

9740000 Depreciation Expense 235,656.00

Page 85 of 85


	4D exhibit  12_Month_Budget_Accrual.pdf
	Report1




